
UNITED NATIONS 

EtUONO:M.IU AND 
S:O·CIAL .C;B·UJVIL 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

. TWELFTH SESSION, 465·1 
MEETING 

Saturday~ 10 March 1951, at·10.15 a.m. . . 

SANTIAGO, CHILE 

Page 
l] p.it~4. Nation~ :ProgrCltl;)me of X echnical Assis~anc~: report of the ~ecretary-

Geqe~Cll ($/1893 .and E/L.149). (conclu(ied) ..... : ... , ..... . · ........ 231 

Expande~ .Programme. Qf Technical Assist.ance.: r~port of the Technical 
Assistance Committee (E/1920, E/19.20/ Aqcl.l and. E/C.2/288). (co.n ... 
tin.u.e.d.) ................. : ........ : ...................... ·. . . . . . . 2.31 

v 

Financing of economic developmc::nt of unc:tex-<.te:v.~lQl?ed CQUnytJ:;ie$ (E/1876. 
and E/C.2/287) (continu~d) ................ : .................... 23.1 

:a~pqrt of tbe International Eank fo~ Reconstruetion an~ Development 
(';B.';/18.73 and E/1873/Add.l) (contmued) .......................... 231 

Preaident: Mr. Hernan S.A~'l'At C~uz .(Chile).. 

Present: The represent~tives of the followi,ng coqntries : 
Belgium,, Canct.da, Cpile, China, Czechoslovakia, Jf~:ance, 
Inclia, Iran, Mexico, P~kistan, :Peru, Philippines, 
Pol~nc;l, Sweden, Unton of Sovie.t Socialist Republics, 
United l<::ingdcim of Great Britain. and Northern 
IJ;~l~n.d, United States of America, U ru~ay. 
· The. rep;reee.ntativ~s Qf t.he £o1J.owing spe-
ciaU?:ed agencies ~ 

lnt~rJ.J.at~onal Lab.our O.l.'gan.isation, Food and Agri
eutture Orga.r.iiza..tion of the United Nations, United 
N~tion.s Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organi
za..tiQn, Iuternati.onal !VI.pn.e.tary Fund, World Healtll 
O.tgani~.at,iQn. · 

Um~~«J Na•iQU!i P~()~IWUJl~ ~f '1'~~1®~~. ,~· 
~i~tant:}e: :ar..,po,\1 ' qf th~ se~retQ;t;':f·~~~r.Ql 
(E/189.3 ~d- ;t;/L.~l~9) (~oru:lr,ule.4) 

·E._xp~ded Programme · ~f 'fechni•~al Assi.stance: 
r~port qf til~ Technical A~.sistallce Comptittee 
('E/1920 .. , ·E/1,20/ Add.l and . E/C.2/288) 
(contin.Jled) · 

FiP~tn.~mg- of ,e..cono~ie. de.velop,m~_Qt Qf under• 
dev~lo.pe.d cog.n_triC-s (E/1876 and E/C•21287-) 
·( ~;Qntin«.ed) 
. ' 

:ftepo.rt . qf tlte ,Inie:t;Q~tiqp,(l) lllilnk fo.r lle.co~sl~c· 
tiqn a~d J;)evelqprn~l\t (B/1873 gd E/1873/ 
~4,4.1.) (~~~~~n~fd) · 

[ ~~encta it.ems 4, S, 6. and 7'] 
1. The PRESIDENT called on the Council to con .. 
tinue the general deb~te. .on item~ 4,. 5, 6 and 7 .:>£ the 
a~enda. · 

.2. M.:r. KATZ-SUC:ijY (Poland) pointed out that 
the quest.ion of the e~Qnomic development of under-

cl.e"VeJQp~d ~QtJnttie~ h~d b.een fq:r $everal years· on the · 
ag~uc.Ja qf vadotJs q:rg:an$ q£. the Uni~e.d N ~#on~. ln 
spite of all the dis.~lJ~~iQJJ.S.. and pu.Qli<;ity, it had to b.e 
rec;Qgn.ized thqt the results a.chieved were insignificant 

·and fell far sb.Qrt of what m.any ha.d !\oped for. 1t might 
therefore be asked why, after so m_any c.onJeretices and 

· unanimous decis.ions, the Council was ~xactly where it 
had been when it started, :with no prospects of movin~ 
beyond th~t poiqt. 

3.. t>n 15 A,ugu~t 1949, th.~ Ec.or,~,omic and Social 
Cqut~cil ®d adopted :resolt;~tion 2.2.2 A {IX) ~etting 
f.o:rth tb~ pr.iJ;J,ciples that should guide the United .N a
tiops in a.ll i.t~ a~t\vities. in the sphere of economic devel
ORmen,t. Tha.t r~s_o.lj.ttion ha.d Qe~n. aclopted u.natdmously 
b.y th~ Geqetal. A&serubly at: its ~ourth s.e.s~ion a.nd hA-d 
l)~c.ome Get~eya.l. As:se.mbly' :r~&olutipn 304 (IV). ·ac.;. 
~prc.Jiug· tQ thqse J,JlZin.~iples, e~on:Qll;lic ·development. wap 
not an end in itself. It must serve the ~cO~QJ;J;);i,c, .s.Qci,a,l 
and poli~ical advancement of the co1,1ntries concerned, 
raise th~ standard of liviug of their population and 
strengt}J.en and develop their ecoqqmic and J?Olitical 
independence~ 

4. ~~P.eri§n~e h?td shown that g~eater o,~tput d:id not 
a:uto.mat~~qlly btting with it a. higher ~tand~Jid of living 
fox the pop,ulCltion ~1;1.d that the increase o£ econQmic 
~lctlvity \lee;). not go ha~d in hand with ·~conomic and 
SQ~ial prog1-:~s.s.. ln accot:"dance wlth the spirit Qf the 
Cba1-:t~r, t.lJ.e ~conom.ic development of under-develo.pen 

· eo..unt:riea. · w.a$ ~lo..selY Unke.cl with su~h general m~asu.:res 
.a.~ ag:tatian ::\iefQt:tlJ:, a be.tt.e.r distributioq· qf t.he. na.tiQAal 
b.\eom;e ~nd aQ~ial ~Rd QU~tu.,ral progre.&.s .. 

5. The ques.tiQn of ec.onomic. develQpment and tech
m~a.l a~istan~e ha.d been iuc~ude« ~n t~e '' ~gend.a . Qf 
various organ~ bx ~Q.e. un.der-d.evelqped countr~es thew
selves. The concern shown by the United States and 
certai11 other countries in connexioll. ·Wlth that problem 

231 



232 Economic and Social Council - Twelfth Session 

was, however, a very recent phenomenon. The United 
States could not claim the initiative in that field nor 
could it show that its way of approaching the problem 
would serve. the interests of the populations of the 
under-developed countries. 

6. The explanation of the growing interest of the 
United States in that question lay in the recent devel
opments in that country's economy, which had become 
a war economy. The United States was endeavouring 
at the same time to find new outlets for its capital and 
ever larger sources of raw materials needed for the 
building up of the war machinery. which would enable 
it to launch a third world war. The problems of econ- . 
omic development and technical assistance were to be. 
subordinated to those two aims. It was easy to see why 
the United States wanted to use the United Nations as 
a screen in its search for new investment markets and 
new sour~es of supplies. Most under-developed coun
tries, particularly those of Latin America and South
East Asia, were becoming more and more opposed to 
colonial policies and methods. The aim had been to 
replace such policies and methods, under cover of the 
United Nations, by so-called inter-governmental action 
which would enable the United States monopolies to 
continue to expand safely and easily without opposition 
on the part of the recipient countries. 

7. The aim of President Truman's "Point Four" Pro
gramme ·was to facilitate the export of United States 
private capital under the pretext of promoting the 
economic development of under-developed areas. In 
fact, the aim was to make the various countries of the 
world financiaily dependent on the big United States 
corporations, to the detriment of the standard of living 
of the peoples of those countries. To realize that, it 
was enough to consider a statement made by Mr. Bog
dan, Director of Finance of Ford International, who 
had said that governments must be made to understand 
that investments made under "Point Four" must be 
principally based upon the profit motive, for corpora.: 
tions must not be expected to apply humanitarian or 
social standards. 

8. To bear out his statement, Mr. Katz-Suchy quoted 
figures illustrating ~he differenc~ bet~een the profits 
made by certain United States compames on the home 
market and on the foreign market. Those figures showed 
that the. earnings. of capital investment abroad were 
three or four times as large as those of capital invested 
in the United States. In 1948 the total reported yield 
on American private and public investments abroad 
had been 1,900 million dollars, out of which 1,552 mil
lion dollars . had · been profits on direct investments. 
During the third quarter of 1950, profits on invest
ments in Latin America had amounted to 155 million 
dollars as compared with 78 million dollars for the· cor
responding period in 1949. The figures quoted c.iid not 
take into account profits locally reinvested. The profits 
~'>$ individual corporations had increased to the same 

.; . •t, by almost 100 per cent in some cases. 

''.ll i.f. the programme of technical assistance to . under
developed countries was really to be successful and 
serve the interests of their peoples, it was essential to· ' 
depart from the policy adopted by the United States 
Government. The principles of the Charter and those 

. . 
of resolution 304 (IV) unanimously adopted by the 
General Assembly must be respected. It was not 
enough to take administrative steps which did not take 
account of the speci.qJ ;.::onditions prevailing in .each coun
try or of the true rt::~s.ms for the under-~eveloped econ
omy of certain regions. Only a very careful analysis of 
the problems to be solved would show what methods 
should be followed, in both the domestic and the inter
national fields, to eliminate the reasons for backward
ness and accelerate economic development. 

10. It should be em~hasized that the under-develop
ment of countries 'was due to the existing contradictions 
between .the productive forces and the. relations of pro
duction, and also to the disproportion between resources 
and industrial output. That situation also existed in the 
industrial capitalist countries, but not in such an acute 
form. 

11. The memorandum by the Secretary-General on 
the financing of economic development of under
developed countries (E/1876) gave the impression that. 
the major problems of those countries had been success
fully solved and that the only problem still outstand
ing was how to find funds for economic develppment. 
A stu~y of the memorandum showed, however, that its 
conclusions were false and that they did not provide 
any concrete solution. The memorandum, in fact, 
merely ~mphasized the role of the International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development and the impor
tance of private investments. It did not deal with the 
possibilities of increasing domestic savings and of 
using internal resources for economic development. 

12. An· . examination of · the situation in under
developed countries showed that their economic back
wardness was not due to a lack of resources, man
power or the· means of creating capital. More than half 
the population of the world lived in those countries 
which were characterized by low productivity, a low 
per capita income and a marked discrepancy between 
·the national revenue derived from. industries and that 
derived from agriculture. Most under-developed coun
tries had enough natural resources to permit full devel
opment. Unfortunately those resources were inade
quately utilized, or, if they :were utiHzed, it was in the 
interests of foreign companies which took no account 
of the needs of the indigenous population. Those coun
tries had· long been deprived of their political and 
economic independence ; and their economic· structure 
had been so determined by the Powers on which they 
were dependent that they st,pplied those Powers with 
cheap agricultural produce and raw materials and 
purchased manufactured goods from them at a very 
unfavourable rate of exchange. 'The result was that the 
under-developed . countries were very sensitive to all 
the fluctuations in' the 'economic situation of the coun
tries on which they . were dependent. 

13. 'The history of th~ last '150. years show·ed that the 
economic development of the Powers of Western Eu· 
rope, and later of the United States, had been largely 
made possible .. by the exploitation of the under
developed countries, particularly the colonies. That 
exploitation had been marked,· in particular, by the ex· 
port of capital invested only in those branches of 
economic activity which were of direct interest to the 



· 465th.Meeting- 10 March 1951 , ~33 

exploiting Power. ~ o industry pad been established, 
for the under-developed countries had been regarded 
as an excellent ma~ket for the m~nufactured products 
of the metropolitan Powers. 

14. He drew attention to the economic and political 
relations between the United States and the countries 
of Latin America. Although the latter had· abundant 
supplies of the raw materials and resources necessary 
for the development of industry, 'they were all in com· 
plete dependence on the United States; whose Govern
ment intervened, when it thought necessary, to defend 
the interests of American companies at the expense 
of the peoples of Latin America. By way of example, 
he mentioned the pressure placed on the Bolivian Go,,
ernment to prevent it from increasing taxation on the 
tin companies, Ambassador Patterson's 11 action in 
Guatenmla, and the contracts concluded with V ene
~uela on the extraction of iron, The seizure of the 
resources of Latin America by the United States was 
being speed up from year to year : direct investments 
had risen from 2,999 million dollars at the end of 1945 
to 4,789 million dollars at the end of 1949. Latin 
America derived no economic or financial benefit from 
them. 

15. The economy of the United States having recently 
become a war economy, the countries of Latin America 
would have to supply even greater quantities of essen
'tial raw .materials, and their development would have 
to be along lines which would allow United States war 
production to be increased. Thus, . they . would be 
depri:ved of their raw. mater~als without receiv,ing in 
return the opportunity to develop their industry or 
replace their outworn equipment. The war economy 
would oblige the countries of Latin America to give 
up some of their industries, as had already happened 
in Cuba and Brazil .. As a result of inflation and :ising 
prices, sometimes combined . with wage-freezing, the 
shortages were felt mainly. by the working classes. 

lo. The situation of the countries of Asia was no 
better than that of the countries of Latin America, as 
was shown by the report of the Economic Commission 
for Asia and the Far East (E/1717) .1 In mpst coun
tries of Asia, the population was under-nourished ; in
dustry had not yet reached the pre-war level ; and the 
terms of trade were more .unfavourable than before the 
war. 

17. The main · difficulties of the under-developed 
countries could not be solved by foreign investments. 
It had been shown· on many occasions that such invest
ments tended to work against the expansion of local 
industries and constituted at the same time an inter
ference in the domestic affairs of States owhlg · to the 
political conditions which attended them. Economic 
development, . therefore, must be based on the utiliza
tipn of national capital resulting from a complete reform 
of . the distribution of the na,tional income, a reform 
which would raise the people's standard of living and, 
consequently, create internal rruirkets for the national 
industry. ' . . 

1 See Official Records of the. Economl~ cmd So~ial CoU1J~11, 
met~~th s~.rsionl $upf1Jemrnt l'fo 9, . 

18. The economic problems of the under-developed 
countries could not be resolved by over-publicized 
small-scale activities. Consideration of the second report 
of the Technical Assistance Board to the Technical 
Assistance Committee (E/1911) showed ~hat work was 
still at the preparatory stage, and that the essential 
principles proclaimed by the Economic 'and Social 
Council and the General Assembly were already being 
ignored. The report attempted to represent :very lim.;. 
ited measures as extensive and far-reaching actions. In 
that connexion, he referred to the technical assistance 
given to Costa Rica (mentioned in paragraphs 59-62); 
and to Lebanon (mentioned in paragraphs 146-148). 
What had been done for those two countries, for 
example, in no way justified the satisfaction that had 
been expressed. · . . 
19. The "efforts" so much vaunted by the represen
tative of the United States were ridiculous when com
pared with the needs of the under-developed <;ountries 
as noted in the unanimously adopted. resolution of the 
General Assembly. The Polish delegation had co
operated actively in drawing up the Expanded Pro .. 
gramme of Technical Assistance; it had voted with 
other delegations to give that programme the vitality 
and the economic and social importance that were 
desirable ; but it had fought against all attempts to 
transform· the programme ·into an instrument of ex
pat?-sion for foreign capital. 

20.. The ·Secretary-General's report on the Technical 
Assistance Programme (E/1893) containe~ · very 
little informatiou on the execution of the programme. 
The few examples giv~n,. however, showed clearly that 
since the so-callt.d integration of the two p~ogrammes 
a number· of new elements had made their appearance. 
He felt some concern when he noted the emphasis 
placed on problems of .governmental qrganization it1 
the section in the Introduction entitled "Future lines of 
work". Without even having read the report of the 
Bolivian mission, there could be no doubt that the mis.: 
sion had attempted to infringe the sovereignty of 
BC'livia by proposing something that might be under
stood as international control of· the government. That 
showed that the allegedly independent expert adviee 
might have dangerous political implications and lead 
to increased foreign control under the pretext of 
encouraging investments. The Bolivian mission had 
been referred to· in· the report. as an example· of what 
should be done in the future. He thought that it'showed, 
on the contrary, what must be avoided~ If the principles 
biid · down by the General Assembly were to be 
respected~ groups of experts must be established only 
at the request and with the approval of governments. 
Some of the experts. should come from u11der-developed 
countries. 

21. He drew attention to the statement submitted by 
the Council of the International Chamber .. of Commerce 
(E/C.2/256/ Add.1), for it showed .precisely ·what was 
to be .avoided in the eJCecution· of. the United Nations 
progratnme. · 

22. Throughout the discussion of the problem of the 
economic development of under-developed countries, 
the Polish delegation bad mi\~llt~in~d tb~t ~~ primar--y 

• ~ 0 I H ' ' ~ ' jt ~· .. : :0. 



Economic and Soclal .Co1Ulml - Twelfib Session 

condition of success was the abolition of all forms of 
col<Jrtial and semi-colonial exploitation and the ·sup
pression of. foreign political and economic domination. 
Econ·omic developm:etlt must be conceived and carried 
out by the peoples concerned with the aim of raising 
their ·standard of li'Ving and ·strengthening their inde~ 
pendence. It must therefore be based 'On a programme 
prepared at the governmental level and providing for 
both short-term and long-term objectives. 

23. By economic development, the Polish delegation 
meant ·primarHy industrialization, Industrialization was 
necessary, for example, in the Far East, where the 
population was very dense and at the present time was 
engaged in ~agriculture. Furthermore, agriculture itself 
must be reformed by changes in t4e system of land 
tenure and in forms of production. The use of better 
methods of farming ~ombined with a fair distribution 
of land would result in an improvement in the people's 
starrdard of living. Agricultural progress and technique 
depended ·on mechanization, the use of fertilizers and 
certain ·other conditions, which all in turn depended 
upon the development of industry. In the under
developed countries, therefore, there was a -close link 
be'tween indu-strialization ·and increased agricultural 
productivity. 

24, To ensure the economic development of the under• 
developed countries, the pattern of th1eir fore.gn trade 
must also be changed : they must ce&.,e to be a source 
"6f 'cheap raw materials and foodstuffs. Such a change 
wO'Uld ·obviottsly constitute a threat to the interests of 
t'he international monopolie:s, who would con:sequently 
be oppO'sed tc> ·any genuine undertaking leading to the 
irtdu~trialization ·of the cou:ntries ctJncerned and a change 
in the structure of their economies. That opposition 
wtts already visible. It was evident in· arguments such 
as those pointing to the hannful ·effects ·of industrial 
development on agri(!ulture :and the .importance of 
ptivate investment a·s opposed to phtnning and locai 
government control. 

.2.5~ In: (!Onclusion, .he .said that the question of the 
economic development of the under-developed coun
t-ries could- not be treated in economic terms alone : 
account must .also be taken of the political and .social 
~*uation, for real progress would be achieved only if 
tortditions were established which would allow the 
under-developed countries to .pursue their politica~, 
_social and economic advancement simultaneously. The 
Uni:tfd Nations must take account of existing concli
titms in the under-developed countr.ies, as well as of 
the al)pirations of their 1peoples. Those peoples should 
. be free to determine their own destiny,. free from all 
foreign interference in their domestic affairs and from 
any political and economic domination. They must 
adopt policies which would enable them to resolve the 
c<llnltradictions that characterized their economic, pooi
ttcal and social structure. That wa:s a pr.oblem of vast 
.importa.ttc~~ ~nd it rtlust be treated with .alt the sedous
ttes-s it deserved : the United Nation~ ~could ttot permit 
itself to deviate from the basic issues to problems ,of 
secon.dary importance or tendencies contrary t,o the 
prin:ciples of the Charter. 

26. Sir Rama:swami M:tJDALIAlt (India) did not 
share the views of those representatives who bact 

. 
asserted that in five years the· United Nations and 'the 
Economic and Social Courtcil in: particular had done 
almost nothing to improve conditions in the under
developed countries. Comparing the spirit in which 
the current programme was being undertaken, and 
even the results which has a1ready been achieved, with 
the total fa'ilure of the .attempts .made ·befove the war, 
he concluded that considerable progress had in Iact 
been made. In that c0nnexion, the most significant ad
vance was that governments r-ealized their -responsibili
ties. J,t was for the Economic and Social Council' to see 
that that realization was translated into .action. 

27. He . therefore agreed with. the repre~entative of 
Canada (463rd meeting") that ·there wtts no ·reason to 
be unduly pessimistic. Time was shtJrt 11.nd the task to 
be accomplished was an immense ~nd urgent one be .. 
cause of the desper::tte . situation in whith many coun
tries were placed. The Econon1it and Sod'al Council, 
however, had begun the execution of its task, which was 
to help the less fortunate peoples of the ·world to im .. 
prove 'their standard of living and ·ensure their 'enjoy• 
ment of human rights. Progress bad 11een 'Slower !tha11 
had been hoped at the ·outset due to obstacles arismg 
out of the political situation. The Economic and 5-ocial 
Council, however, bore no responsibility for that delay 
and need not therefore attempt to find any excuses for 
its actien. 

28. He then replied to the argument raised by some 
representatives, amo11g them the Polish representative, 
who had ·said fuat foreign capital ·was ·not n usef41 con
tribution to econom.ic ·development ~inusmuch as the 
investment of such capital was .made tontingent upon 
conditions of a politica1 or military ·nature and r~ndered 
the country borrowing the mpney liable to :colonial 'ex
ploitation. 'In the past when tbe situation in. that respe'ct 
had been different from what it was at the pre·sent tirtte 
and when it had really been possib1e. to ta:1k of colonial 
exploitation, o£ which his country had been one ·of the 
viet 11s, rio 0ne had .protested against .that exploitation 
more than,. he 11ad. That chapter in .history, the perioCl 
of ·colonialism, had· come to an end, 'howe'\ er, ana should 
be forgotten. At .the .present time a. spirit o'f goo·Ct~will 
and ·friendship governed the relations ·between India 
amd the United Kingdom. It was impossiole 'to !build a 
better world for the futur.e without acting. in that spitit 
of good-will and forgetting old grudges. rt was usettil 
of course to remember past experience in such matters, 
1J:>artircula-rly when ,it was a question of ·controlling the 
activity of foreign capital, but .. countries like India 
which had just attained their independence were 1ndt 
'likely to forg-et those aessons . 

29. Sir Ramaswami then consUtered the ·(tpoint 
Four" .programme and asked first why the Polish rep .. 
resentative always .referred to the 4'so-ca11ed Point 
Four programme". It was alleged that conditions of a 
,political and militar:r nature w.ere attached. to :a-ssistante 
granted under that programme. The .representative of 
Poland himself, however, baa just quoted 'the -state
ments of Mr. Bogdan to the effect that investments bf 
private capital should be made on the basis or pur<!Iy 
commercial considerations. He also wonder.ed :whether 
t'he P'Olish representative httd ttte.ant to say tlhat cronn· 
tries which had accepted aid under the ~?dint flouf' 



progr~mtne had been colrtpelled to sttblhit to political 
and military conditions. On 28 December 1950, India 
had signed an agreement with the United States for 
teeh'rldcal assistance under the "Point Four" programme 
ah10tlnting to $1,500,000. Yet no otle was unaware of 
the fact that during the last few months the United 
Stal(:es Government had not .been partilcularly satisfied 
with the attitude taken by the Indian Government. To 
be fair to both the Contracting Parties it should be 'said 
that during the negotiations relating to a~ssistance under 
the "Point Foar" programme, there had never been 
any question of· political ·or .military conditions. 

30. JE!e einphasized the importance and urgenc}T of 
the question ·of the .financing of economic development. 
It '\\yas very distressing for the representatives of the 
under-developed court tries . constantly to be raising that 
problem in the Council, tb be describing the tragic 
·situation of their peoples and to be a:sking that the 
·situation should be remedied. They were compelled to 
db ·so, however, because of the seriousness bt the situa
tio'tl which did not concern their counti"ies alone but 
affected the maintenance of peace throughout the world. 
It was essential to try to give the masses of the world 
the minimum standard of living to which every human 
being was entitled and thus to. offer them reason to hope 
for a better life. That was the Council's most urgent 
task. 

31. The President of the Bank had said ( 457th meet
ihg) tha:t economi~ development was indispensable tb 
the maintenance of peace, for ·aggression was bred on 
want. There were several forms ot aggression which 
threa:tened international peace and the world could not 
defend itself against them merely by piling up arma
ments. In order tb maintain peace it was also essential 
to eliminate want and to ensure a better standard bf 
living and the enjoyment of human rights for th~ 
peoples of the world. The Twenty Year Plan for the 
maintenance of peace prepared by the Secretary-General 
(E/1900) who had suggested that a United Nations 
·etbn(}mic reconstruction agency sh:ould be set up, came 
to the same conClusions and stressed the need to rai·se 
the standard of living of the majority of ma:nkirtd who 
lived in conditiott's 'Unfit for human beings. · 

32. The Economic and Social Council had taken those 
consider.ations into account in its action and particu
latly 'in the establishment of the Expanded Programme 
·of 'Tedhnh':al Assistance. That programme had been 
·admirably ·cotlceived and could he expected to achie'V'e 
~ ~teat deal. He noted the ctiticis-ttrs ~of the Technica':l 
Assist.a'tl.ce Programme which had been made by the 
Polish r-epresentative and t!xpres·sed the hope that, ·in 
future, the Polish contribution to that programme 
would not be confined merely to advice and criticism. 

33. lie then turned to the Colombo Plan which was 
a joint prograt:nt?le of action for all .the c.ountr.ies of 
South and South .. East Asia. lie quoted the Indian Gov
ernment's· statements .regarding that plan to the effect 
that if the external financial assistance contempl~ted 
therein were not forthcoming, the result would be an 
inflationary pressure in India which would discourage 
savings. and compel the government to reduce its im
po.r.ts, .retard economic de\l'elopment, increase taxes. and 
tighten economic controls. 'the result or all thb'se 

measures would be to reduce foreign trade and to in .. 
ct-ease unemploytrt~nt and to prevent any rise in the 
standard of living which could not fail to have a harm
ful effect on political and social stability. His govetfi
ment proposed to draw on the internal resources of the 
country and to devote a considerable sum, namely 2,00Q 
million dollars, to economic development over a six~ 
year period. 

$4. He recalled 'th~· conelusi6h!s of the Colombo Plan 
to the effeCt that the countries in the regi«:>n would 
themselves provide the greater patt of the funds neces
sary to finatice their developtl:lent. However, w-ithout 

. ~xternal aid, tlrey tould not continue that de\l'elopment 
3:t the rate Heeessary to avoid a catastrophe. It wa'S 
therefore essential to help them, for the peoples of 
South-East Asia could rtot be abandoned to poverty and 
despa:ir. He pointed ~ut that tht>se cohclusions, which 
were those of responsible statesmen, showed the im .. 
portance and urgency of the problems of financing 
economic development. . · 

35. He n·oted that his observatiotts on Africa had been 
harshly criticized by the :Belgian ·representative and....._ 
to his a:stonishment- by the French and United King
dom representatives also. He had been particularly 
surprised to hear the United Kingdom representative 
say ( 457th meeting) that the establishment of an 
economic commission for Africa was subject to the 
~~>11s¢11t o£ the governments concerned in that area. 
'Sir :Ramaswami pointed out that Articles. 73 and 7 4 
bf the Charter · confe~red special prerogatives with 
tegard to the . Non-Self-Goverhing Territories o'f 
Africa on the tJnited Nations, and he expressed the . 
hope that ·when the question arose in a more concrete 
form, the governments c0ncerned, whose . progressi-ve 
spirit he recognized, would abandon theit> objections. 

36. He explained why it b.ppeated tb him particularly 
neces·sary to establish art economic commission for 
Africa. That continent was rightly called the dark con
't'in~nt, .not because. of 'the colour of its inhabitants, but 
~ecause ot conditibns which prev~led in . lt.. lc'or 
example, .a former Governor of the Belgian Congo had 
'recently stated at Bostoh that cases of cannibalisM still 
occurred there. However, the most serious feature· of 
the situation in Afric~ was the absence of any ettlight
ened public opinion. The Prime Minister of a Member 
country of th·e United N~tions in that corttinent had 
gone so far as to state that he would be glad if the 
United 'N' ations Charter were scrapped and to deplore 
the granting of a limited right to vote to the indigenous 
inhabitants of the Gold Coast by the British Authorities, 
a measure which he considered a threat to the suprem .. 
acy of the white race. The same countr.y was e1terting 
pressure on other govetrtments in the .region to induce 
them not to carry but the reforms they had pro'mised. 
That policy was leading the contin~nt of .Africa to a 
catastrophe which might engulf the whol~ world; His 
suggettiol'ls ·w.ith reg-ard to the estabtishtrtent of .. a,n 
ecbnamit commissibfi 'for . .A;fti~b. had ·b~~tl ttJ:ade itt .a 
·spirit df friendly cb-operatiol'i. 

37. In New belhi there was a magnificent palate on 
the walls of whith was the inscription : "If there be a 
paradise on earth, it is here'•. The masses of the popu
lation in the under-developed countries lived ·in suclt 



236 Economic and Social Council.- Twelfth Session 

conditions. that they must say : HI£ there be a hell on 
earth, it is in our hovels". It was the duty of the United 
Nations to deliver the major part of humanity from 
that hell. 

38. He recognized that the rearmament policy was 
probably necessary to preserve peace and discourage 
aggression, as was indeed ptovided for in the Charter. 
However, rearmament would not solve all the problems 
connected with the maintenance of peace. At present 
there were two forces in the world. The first was seek" 
ing to exploit poverty and discontent, to awaken Uto
pian hopes and to arouse violence everywhere. The 
second drew its inspiration from the Charter, it was 
built on hope and confidence and sought to provide 
decent living conditions for all humanity. The Council 
should do everything to encourage and stimulate the 
action of that force and thus pave the way for a true 
peace. 

39. Mr. CORLEY SMITH (United Kingdom) 
merely wished to explain that his delegation's reply to 
the Indian representative's proposal could not be interH 
preted as a sharp criticism. This reply reflected a differ
ence of opinion with regard to the solution proposed, 
but neither the words nor the tone could be qualified as 
11Sharp". 

40. Mr. BORIS (France) pointed out that while the 
Indian representative had gained the impression that 
the French delegation's reply was a harsh criticism of 

·his proposal, he had admitted that such an impression 
did not devolve from the summary record of the 
meeting but from a newspaper in Spanish. 

41. Actually, his delegation's criticism had not been 
aimed at the Indian representative's speech but at the 
Secretariat report the latter had quoted. The passage 
on production and investment problems (E/1910/ 
Add.1) quoted by the Indian representative contained 
the statement that profits on the capital invested were 
transferred abroad and not reinvested in the country. 
His delegation -like those of the United Kingdom 
and Belgium- had' objected to that passage in the 
report. It had shown that France had made a great 
ittvestment effort and had quoted figures showing that 
that effort was comparable to the tot~l investments made 
during the same period in the rest of the world by the 
Bank. The steady surplus of exports from France to 
its Overseas Territories since the Second World War 
was sufficient proof that the allegation in the report was 
incorrect as regards those Territories. 

42. For the rest, there was no doubt a difference of 
opinion between · the Indian representative and the 
French delegation regarding the establishment of an 
economic commission for Africa, but that difference 
had shown itself merely in an exchange of purely ob
j ecti've arguments. 

43. Mr. CHERNYSHEV (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) recalled that at the meeting of 9 March the 
United States representative had stated ( 464th meet
ing), without producing any proof, that the amount 
and duration of the armament·. expenses which hif" 
country would have to meet would be determined : 
the policy of t~e. Soviet Union. 

44. He was scarcely. surprised, by that statement. It 
was indeed obvious that the United States, while 
engaging for the benefit of capitalist monopolies in an 
armament race prejudicial to the interests of the work .. 
ers, was seeking to escape responsibility for it. Never" 
theless, everyone knew that the peoples of the Soviet 
Union who were pursuing their peaceful labours could 
in no way be considered responsible for the armaments 
race. 

45. Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) wished to clear 
·up the misunderstanding· between himself and Sir 
Ramaswami Mudaliar. He had referred to the so-called 
Americap "Point Four" programme because the title 
of that programme did not correspond to its true ob
jectives. He understood that India should have a lively 
memory of the colonial oppression it had suffered, 
which was probably one of the principal reasons for the 
attitude it had assumed and for its opposition to the 
policy of the monopolies. He explained that, in the 
speech he had previously quoted, Mr. Bogdan had em
phasized the social and humanitarian objectives of the 
investment of private capital. 

46. He quoted a statement from an American 
periodical to the effect tbat the principles invoked must 
be adapted to the evolution of events. That statement 
was a striking confirmation of the opinion he had 
expressed on "Point Four". 

47 .. Mr. QURESHI (Pakistan) thought it might be 
helpf1;1l if his delegation made some further comments 
on the matters under . consideration. He recalled that 
the representative' of Czechoslovakia had stressed the 
fact that only 10 per cent of the credits provided for 
under the Colombo Plan were destined for industrial 
development., Without mentioning_ the other countries 
that were to participate in the plan, he would cite cer
tain figures Felating to Pakistan. The total cost of the 
Pakistan development programme under the Colombo 
Plan amounted to 2,600 million rupees. Of that total, 
the. following percentages were allotted for development 
of the various branches of the economy : agriculture, 
32 per cent; tra.nsport and communications, 20 per 
cent; fuel and power, 18 per cent; industry and mining, 
19 per cent; housing, health and medical, education, 
technical training and water supply, 11 per cent. 

48. Mr. Qureshi pointed out that the major portion 
of the credits was reserved for agricultural develop
ment, since 80 per cent of the population of Pakistan 
lived on agricultural production. Important irrigation 
projects and anti-waterlogging measures would be 
undertaken, and it was estimated that 6 million acres 
of land would benefit from those measures. Moreover, 
improvement of the system of water distribution would 
allow 4 million acres to come under double cropping. 
Such measures, combined with distributic>n of improved 
varieties. of seeds and fertilizers and the partial mecha
nization · of agriculture, would permit an increase itt 
agricultural production, over present production, by the 
following percentages: cereals, 17. per cent; oil-seeds, 
vegetables, sugar cane, fruits and tea, 86 per cent, 
making a total food crop increase of 34 per cent ; jute; 
tobacco and cc>tton, 14 per cent. The total increase in 
agl"ieulturat production hi 1957 would be 33 per cent, . .. . . ~ ' . 



465tb, Meeting- 10 Mlil'ch 1951. 237 

The rise in the production of rice, which would amount 
to 500,000 tons, would enable that production to meet 
the needs of Eastern Pakistan. The execution of the 
programme would bring about a lowering of the prices 
of essential foodstuffs and should raise the standard 
of living. 

49. · Turning to the question o~ hydro-electric power, 
Mr. Qureshi stressed the crucial importance of that 
'type of power in a country which had limited resources 
of oil and coal. Without adequate production of electric 
power, i1 would be difficult to carry out the programmes 
of industrial and agricultural development. Pakistan's 
electric power potential wa,s from 5 to 6 million kilo
watts, as against ·a preser,t installed capadty of only 
9,600 kilowatts. Pakistan had a popu1ation 5>f 82 mil
lion, and its rate of consumption of electricity per head 
was among the lowest in the world. The construction 
of new hydro-electric and thermal stations would make 
it possible to increase production by 256,000 kilowatts. 
That supplementary produCtion would furnish the 
power needed for the pumping and irrigation installa
tions, the new jute and cotton. mills and the new 
machinery to be used in moderniz~ng the . mines. It 
would also enable Pakistan to cease importing electric 
power from India. The Government of Pakistan was 
also taking steps to increase the output of coal~ 

50. In connexion with transport and communications, 
he stressed the need for improving Pakistan's railway 
system. The country's railway installations had suffered 
greatly, both during and after the Second World War, 
owing to excessive use and inadequate maintenance. 
The development plan provided, in particular, for the 
repair and replacement of worn-out installations and 
rolling stock. · It also provided for an improvement in 
the network of roads and telecommunications, and the 
development of the port of Chittagong. The excessive 
use to which the port had been put during the war had 
rnade extensive repairs necessary. At the time Pakistan 
had achieved its independence, the port's handling 
capacity had· been no more than 600,000 tons per year; 
it had now reached 1,800,000 tons. Credits amounting 
to 130 million rupees had been provided, to extend the 
facilities of the port and enable it ·to handle 4 million 
tons a year. 

51. With regard to industry and mines, he emphas
ized the fundamental importance of 'factories for the 
processing of jute and cotton, and the manufacture of 
paper. In point of fact, although Pakistan was a major 
producer of jute, it did not possess a single jute mill. 
Since the national economy was to a large extent 
dependent upon the demand for that commodity, the 
government considered it essential that measures should 
be taken to make possible the manufacture of jute 
products which could compete successfully with. sub
stitutes. The plan contemplated the establishment of six 
jute mills, which would produce. 130,000 tons of· jute 
a year, a volume of production which would be sufficient 
to meet Pakistan's own requirements and leave a 
margin for export. The government regarded the cdton 
industry as equally important. At present, Pakxstan 
produced only 100 million yards of cotton goods 
annually, while its consumption was 700 million yards. 
The plan provided for the construction of twenty .. four 

' 

· mills, which would make it possible, at the end of the 
six-year period, to meet the demand created by an 
annual consumption of 17 yards per head without im
porting more than 150 million. yards. He recalled the 
extent to which his country had suffered as a result of 
the war, and pointed out that the measures contem
plated would merely restore production to its pre-war 
level. The plan also provided for the construction of a 
paper mill which would utilize local raw materials and 
would be capable of producing 301000 tons of paper 
annually. The total cost of the programme for devel ... 
opment of the jute, cotton and paper innnstries was 
estimated at 390 million rupees. The pla1.. 'rther p1'o
. vided for a general geological survey of tht .::ountry to 
determine its. mineral wealth. 

52. In the matter of social services, the sum of 180 
million rupees had been set aside under the plan to 
supplement the amounts allocated for such services 
from the revenueo of the provincial and municipal gov
ernments. That sum would cover the cost of housing .. 
construction, expansion of health and medical services 
and expansion of educational facilities. The plan pro-. 
vided for the construction. of housing for refugees, the 
development of new residential areaS1 and the estah
lishment of 600 rural and 600 mobile dispensaries, 120 
hospitals, 4,460 new primary schools, 1,456 middle 
schools, 400 high schools and 17 teachers' training 
colleges. Furthermore, the sum of 90 million rupees 
had been set aside for the establishment of technical 
institutes and research laboratories, and for the creation 
of scholarships for study and research abroad. He 
observed that while the Pakistan development pro
gramme might appear a modest one, it had the virttte 
of having been established on a realistic and practical 
basis. He then drew attention to the implications of 
the economic development of under-developed coun .. 
tries and the magnitude of the resources required in 
order to achieve any perceptible improvement of the 
standard of living of the populations of those countries. 
The rise in income was evidently closely related to the 
amount of capital invested. At the end of the war, a 
group of industrialists had evolved a plan known as the 
Bombay Plan, which showed that in order to raise the · 
per capita income from 65 to 130 rupees, it would be 
necessary to spend 30,000 million dollars, at the pre
devaluation rate. 

53. In his view, the manner in which problems of 
economic development and its financi11g were being 
discussed at present was reminiscent of the way in 
which certain enthusiasts had endeavoured to solve 
India's economic problems during the 1930's. Those 
persons had attempted to reconstruct the rural economy 
by improving the breeding of livestock, and by 
alleviating the situation of the peasants by providing 
them with quinine and mosquito nets to protect. them 
from malaria. They had forgotten 011ly one thing : the 
peasants had no means of buying the quinine and mos-
quito nets. · 

S4. The delegation of Pakistan had been deeply moved 
by the statement made by the President of the United 
States in· presenting the budget for 1952 to the Con· 
gress. The ·President had declared that the peoples of 
·the under-developed countries must be given faith in 



238 Economi~ ~d SQC~~l fj:ouncil ~ Tw~lfth Session 

their future1 faith that their pt:oblems were 1'\0t going 
unnoticed and that steps were being taken to solve 
them. At the eleventh session of the Economic and 
Social Council, the United States delegation had 
stressed the need for economic development1 and the 
delegation of Pal~istan appreciated the efforts made by 
the Government of the United States to study the prob
lems entailed by such development. N evertbeless, he 
wished to point out the po&sibility that the great .Powers 
might not be: fully aware of the ~act implications of 
the promises they had made. He did not wish to be so 
presumptuous as to advise the United States concern
ing what should be done to carry out its promises, but 
he felt, nevertheless, that more would have to be don.e 
than was being done at pre&ent. He was well aware tha.t 
the United States had abundant resources at its com
mand ; but he also knew that those resources were not 
inexhaustible. A choice must be made; and the choice 
might be between a comfortable automobile for the 
average American citizen and a truck to carry passen
gers and goods in a remote area of the Far East. It was 
possible that the economic development of under
developed countries might have to be achieved at the 
expense of the highly developed countries, for world 
resources were inadequate when compared with world 
needs. It might prove necessary to institute some sort 
of rationing of capital and materials, such as had been 
imposed· during the war, if the development of the 
under-developed countries was to be ensured. Referring 
to the operations of the Export-Import Bank, he 
pointed out that out of the total of 1,000 million dollars 
distributed in the form of loans by that Bank, 333 mil
lion had been granted to Canada, a country having one 
of the highest standards of living in the world, and 260 
million dollars had been assigned to Europe and the 
.same amount to Latin America, while Asia, an area 
where the standard of living was the lowest in the 
world, bad received only 157 million dollars. Similarly, 
the loans granted to Asia by the International ·Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development amounted to only 
6 per cent of the total loans furnished by that organiza-

Printed in Canada 

~ion. He was glad to note that in the case of loans by 
that Bank, the situation had improved since May 1950. 

55. In conclusion, he recalled that in view of the 
gravity of the situation, urgent measures were required; 
any delay might be fatal. For that reason, the delegation 
of Pakistan favoured the establishment of an ad hoc 
committee o£ experts consisting of government repre
sentati;ves for the purp,ose of s.tudying appropriat~ 
methods of financing the. development programmes. Q.f 
the various un<ier-developed cotJntdes. 

56'. 'l'he PRESIPENT stated that it.em 6 of the 
agenda would be referred to the Economic Committee; 
he decided to put to the vote the joint draft resolution 
submitted by India, Mexico and the United Kingdom 
(E/L.149) relating to item 4 of the agenda. He ob
served that, in accordance with the request of the USSR 
reprel:!entative, the two paragraphs of the draft resolu
tion would be voted on separately. 

The first paragraph of the. draft resolution was 
adopted t{,nanimously. 

The second paragraph was adopted oy 14 vot~s to 3., 
with 1 abstention. 

The draft resolution as a whole was adopted by 14 
votes to none, with 3 abstentions. · 

It. was decided that the draft resolution pt·oposed by 
the PreS;ident ( E I L..160) relating to it ~m S would be 
voted on at t.he ne~t meeting. 
57. The PRESIDENT then proposed ·;hat the Coun
cil should adopt a draft resolution on item 7 taking note 
of the report of the International Bank for R2conQ 
struction and Development. 
58. Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) stated that h~ 
would abstain in the vote on such a resolution. 

The draft resolution proposed by the President was 
ad/opted OY, 15 votes to none, with 3 abstentions. 

The .we~ti~g rose at 1.40 p.m. 




